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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Acl (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate
accounting records and is respensible for the cortent and integrity of the &nnual financial statements and related financial
information included in this repori. it is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statsments
fairly present the state of affairs of the municipalily as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinicn on the annuat financial
statemants and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

‘The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice {GRAP) including any interpretations, quidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon apprepriale accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the municlpality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting
officer to meet these responsibilities, the sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of &rror or deficit in a
cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibiliies within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of rigk. These controls are
monitored throughout the municipality and &ll employess are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reascnable circumstances is above reproach, The focus of rigk
managemant in the municipality is on idenlifying, assessing, managing and monitoring alt known forms of risk across the
munisipafity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and sthical behaviour are applied and managed within predstermined procedures
and constraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any system.of internat financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance agalnst materal misstatement or deficit.

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2022 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipalily has or has access fo adequale resources to
continue in operationat existence for the foreseeable future,

The annual financial statements set t?ut on page 6, which have been prepared on the going concern basis jwere approved by
the on ‘\ovqmber 2021 and wersi#igned on its behalf by: ' '

F Lequ—ﬁ

Municipal Manager 7 : : B T

Monday, 15 November 2021
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Accounting Officer's Report

The accounting officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2021.
1.  Review of activities

Main business and aperations

Net surplus of the municipality was R 3 439 580 (2020: deficit R 38 053 317).

2. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2021, the municipality had an accumulated surplus (deficit) of R 141 946 605 and
that the municipality's total liabilities exceed its assets by R 141946 605.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concemn. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will ccour in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipatity to continue as a gomg concern is depandent on a number of factors. The most significant of
these is that the accounting officer continue to procura funding for the ongoing operations for the municipality.

3.  Subsequent events

The accouniing officer is not aware of any matier or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.
4,  Accounting Officer's interest in contracts
Nane have been identified.

5. Accounting policies

The impact an the results of the municipality in adopting the above policies is reflected in notes to the annual financial
statements.

The annual financial statements prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting
" Practice (GAAP), including any interpretations of such Statements issued by the Accounting Practices Board, and in
accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting

Standards Board as the prescribed framework by National Treasury.

The}e}nnual financial stafements set out on page 5, which have been prepareci[on the going concern basis, were approved by
the é)n 15 November 2021 and were signed on its behalf by: ?f ‘ )

F Leeuw
Municipal Manager
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2021

Figures in Rand Nota(s) 2021 2020
Restated*

Assets

Current Assets _ :
Inventories ' o 4 19192 19199

Receivables from exchange fransactions 5 2752324 3608 434
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 8 1 267 053 31 556
VAT receivable _ 4843133 2242 915
Consumer debtors 7 42 249 541 29 449 572
Cash and cash equivalents 8 4982 352 2685763
‘ 56 113602 38038 439
Non-Current Assets _
Property, plant and equipment 3 201 531 894 . 205 220 422
Total Assets 257 645496 243 258 861
Liahilities
Current Liabilities :
Finance lease obligation ] 9 874 830 874 830
Payables from exchangs transactions ' 13 50 165 884 39 453 373
Consumer deposits : 14 118 716 97.594
Employee benefit obligation : 12 180 000 137 000
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 10 8 267 974 10 190 375
59 605 404 50 753 172
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation : 9 1559 748 1559 748
Employee benefit obligation : 12 1 895000 1 605 000
Provisions 11 52 638 744 50 703 914
. 56093492 53 868 662
Total Liabilities ' : 115 698 896 104 621 834
Net Assets 141 946 605 138 637 024
éﬁﬁumulated surplus : ;./ 141948 605 138 837 024
yotal Net Assets . § ~ 141946 605 138 637 024
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020
Restated®
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods 423 106 354 170
Service charges 16 8902 370 9 429 860
Rental of facilities and equipment 17 295 384 178 105
Interest received - Exchange Transactions- ' ' ' 4108425 3 687 855
Licences and permils : 18 775 298 390 729
Other income ' 162 973 153 514
Interest received - investment 20 168 064 158 164
Total revenue from exchange transactions : ' 15 835614 14 332 497
Revenue from non-exchange transactio_ns
Taxation revenue :
Property rates 21 3 391 831 3 958 455
Interest Received - Non Exchange Transactions ' 1083 238 5406
Transfer revenue ‘ )
Government grants & subsidies - 22 52708401 37 672 440
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions ' 57 183 470 41 636 301
Total revenue 15 73019 084 55 968 798
Expenditure
Employee related costs ' 24 {31266 458) (29 445 121)
Remuneration of councillors 25 (2988 048) (2 787 968)
Depreciation 26 {9 656 140) (45 633 255)
Impairments 40 {5951 315) (84 057)
Finance costs . 23 {3914 515) (4023719)
Debt Impairment 27 - (4 904 212)
Bulk purchases . _ 28 {26680 341) (1 164242)
General Expenses . 29 (13142 687) (5979 543)
Total expenditure (69 579 504) (94 022 115)
L;’,Surplus {deficit) for the year ) L‘/ . 2356342 (38 058 723)
y . g - p .

—my
=
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in R.and

Accumulated Total net
surplus assets

Balance at 01 July 2019
Changes in net assels
Surplus for the year

Total changes

Restated* Balance at 01 July 2020
Changes in net assets ’
Surplus for the year

Total changes
Baiance at 30 June 2021

Note(s) .

176 690 341 176 690 341

(38 053 317) (38 053 317)

(38 053 317) (38 053 317)
138 507 025 138 507 025

3439 580 3439 580
3 439 580 3439 580

141 946 605 141 946 605
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Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Note(s) 20214 2020
Restated®
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Sale of goods and services (40 028 190} 11 008 628
Grants 50 786 000 227 168 563
Interest income 3756 739 16-372 856
Other receipts 2095 858 5 584 997
16 6104056 259 135045
Paym_ents . :
Employee costs . (34 182 557) (122 168 921)
Suppliers 35958 990 (124 698 208)
Finance costs (3914 515) - (4023 719)
' B (2 118 082) {250 890 848)
Net cash flows fram operating activities 30 14 492 323 8 244 197
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant'ahd equipmeht 3 (12 198 286) {7 993 012)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3 2 552 -
Net cash flows from investing activities {12 195 734) {7993 012)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance lease payments - 2434 578
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 296 589 2685763
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year - 2 B85 763 -
8 4982352 - 2685763

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year

Approved Reference.
budget on comparabie - between final
basis ~ budget and
- Figures in Rand actual

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenus '
Revenue from exchange
transactions : : i
Property Rates 10 239 000 - 10239000 - {10239 000)
Service charges - Water "7 280 000 - 7280 000 - {7280 000)
Revenue ' ’ :
Service Charges - Sanitation 2 887 0060 - 2.887 000 -~ (2887 000)
Revenue )
Service Charges - Refuse 3362 000 - 3362000 - (3 362 000)
Revenue .
Rental of facilities and 1 545 000 - 1545000 _ - (1545000)
Equipment : i _ '
Interest Earned - Extemnal 808 000 - 608 000 - {608 000)
lnvestments
interest Earned - Outstanding 1219 000 - 1219000 - {1 219 400}
Dabtors : _
Fines, penalties and forfeits 800 000 (600 000) - - -
Agency services - 896 000 100 000 1096 000 - {1096 000)
Transfers and subsidies 31 846 000 3401000 35047 000° - - (35047 000}
Other Revenue - 1316 000 - 1316 000 .- (1316000
Gains 4 427 000 - 4427000 . - (4 427 000)
License and Permits - 505 000 505 000 - {505 000)
Total revenue from exchange 66 124 000 3 406 000 69 530 000 - {69531 000)
transactions Co- :
Expenditure ) :
Employee related costs {33 401 000) 1636000 (31765000} 31266458 63031458
Rermuneration of councillors (2 942 000} - (2942000) 2988048 5930 048
Debt Impairment (6 617 000) d,-  (8617000) . .e6i7000
Deprecialion and asset - - (5 096 000) - . (5096000) (9656 140) - (4560 140)
impairment 1
Finance Charges (437 000) 437 000 - (5951315) {5851 315)
Bulk Purchases (1 569 000) 219 000 {1350 000) 2 660 341 4010 341
Other Materials (848 000) {10 000) (856 000) - 856 000 -
Contracled Services {4 852 000) (306 000) {4 958 000) - 4 958 000
Transfers and Subsidias (699 000) 20 000 {679 000) - 679 000
Other axpenditure (11 762 000) 756 000 (11006 000) 13142687 24 148 687
Total expenditure (68 021 000) 2752000 (65269 000) 344504079 99 719 079
Surplus / {Deficit) (1 897 000) 6158 000 4 261 000 34 450 079 30 189 679
Transfers and Subsidies - capital 22 680 000 (245 000) 22435000 - - (22 435 000)
(monetary allocations)
{National/Provincial and District}

20 783 600 5813000 26 696 000 34 450 079 7754 079

10
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved = Adjustments Final Budget Actual'amounts Difference

Reference

budget on comparable between final
pasis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Finéncia] Pasition
Assets
Current Assets ‘ .
Cash 12.881 000 {7 003 000) 5878 000 4982 352 {895 648)
Call Investments Depasits 3000 315 000 318 060 - {318 000)
Consumer Debtors 21 057 000 8615000 29672000 42240541 . 12577 541
Other Debtors 5340000 1698000 7036 000 - (7036 000)
Inventary 178 000 .- 178 000 19 199 (158 801}
Current Portion of Long term - 53 000 53 000 180 000 127 000
Receivable - . ’
39 459 000 3676 000 43 136 600 47 431 092 4 296 092
Mon-Current Assets . )
Long Term Receivable 1 865 000 - 1 865 000 1895000 30 000
Property, plant and equipment 195 823 000 (5661000) 190162000 201531894 11369894
: 197688 000 (5661 000) 192027000 203 426 834 11 399 894
Total Assets 237 147 000 (1985 000) 235163000 250857 986 15 695 986
Liabilities
Current Liabiiities :
Borrowing 2301000 - 2301 000 - (2301000
Consumer Deposits 95 000 - 95 000 116 716 21716
Trade and Other Payables (4083000) 48871000 44788000 50185 884 5377 884
Provisions 9091000 4000 9 095 000 - (9095000).
7 404 000 48 875000 56 279 000 50 282 600 (5 996 400)
Non-Current Liabilities :
Borrowing - 1560000 “‘?_,/ - 1560000 .- (1560000)
Provisions 383 000 ¥ - 383000 52838744 & 52249744
1 949 000 ' 7 ) - 1 949 000 52 638 744 50 689 744
Total Liabilities 9 353 000 48 875 000 58 228 000 102921 344 - 44693 344
Net Assets 227 794 000 (50 860 000) 176935000 147936642 {28 997 358)
COMMUNITY WEALTH/EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 150 187 000 24 625000 174 812000 - {174 812 000)

11
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adiustments  Final Budget Actual amounts ~ Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
: basis budget and
Figures in Rand : actual

Cash Flow Statement -

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts _

Property Rates ' 5120 000 . 5120 000 3391 831 {1728 169)

Service Charges o 6 764 000 11 000 6 775 000 4 550 221 (2214 779)

Other Revenue . 1 545 000 7898000 9443000 5899541  (3543459)

Transfers and Subsidies - - 34 247 000 - 34247000 52708 401 18 461 401

Operational _ ' ‘

Transfers and Subsidies - 23 480 000 - 23480000 -~ - {23 480 000)

Capital ' ‘ ) c

Interest ) ~ 808 000 . 608 000 - {608 000)
71 764 000 7909000 796730060 - 66559994 (13113 006)

Payments ’ . .

Suppliers and Employess (68 868 000 15312000 (53 536 000) 31266458 84 822458

Net cash flows from opefating 2896 000 23221000 26117 000 97 826 452 71 709 452
activities . .

Cash flows from investing activities ) ] :
_-Purchase of Capital Assets {23 400 000) 565000 (22835000) (12 198288) 10636714

Net increase/{decrease) in.cash - {20 504 000) 23 786 000 3282000 'g5428166 82346 166
and cash equivalents i

Cash and cash equivalents at 63 000 S - - 63000 -
the beginning of the year ‘ '

{63 000)

Cash and cash equivalents at (20 441 000} 23 786 Q00 3345000 85628166 82283166 -
the end of the year : :

Reconciliation

‘*"F’E" AP .
\l

R e -
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IKheis Local Municipality
(Registration number NC084)
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Accounting Policies -
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020

1. Presentation of Annual Fihancial Statements -

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recegnised Accounting
Practice {GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board .in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance

Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These annual financlal statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of dccounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurament, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant acceunting policies, wh|ch have been consistently apphed in the preparatlon of these annuat
fnanmal statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting pelicies are consistent with the previous period. -

1.1 Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipality.

1.2 Gaing congern assumption

- These annual financial statemants have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to
~ operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 _Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affact the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the _
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates -
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgemenits include:

Other signifi cant judgements, sources of estimation uncertainty and/for relating |nformat|en have been disclosed in the relating
notes.

Trade racecivables

‘The municipality assesses its trade receivables for impaifment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surpius or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable data
|nd|callng a measurab!e decrease in the estlmatec&future cash flows from a financial asset. ‘ ;/

“The impairment: for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on hlstorlcal loss ratios, adjusted for natlonal nd
industry-specific econamic conditions and other inflicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the
partfolia. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolic and scaled to the estimated foss emergence

period.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the municipality for similar financial instruments.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based an the higher of value-
in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations reqguire the use of estimates and assumptions.

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assats are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of ather assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash fiows used to determine the value in
use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.

13
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Accounting Policies

1.3 'Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty {(continued)
Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimaie based on the information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisicns are included in note 11 - Provisions. '

Post-retirement benefits

The Municipality has defined benefit plan. The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net -
costf{income) include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrymg amount of post
retirement obligations.

Other key assumptions for pension obllgatlons are based on current market conditions. Add|t|onal information is disclosed in

"~ Note 12.

- Effective interest rate

The municipality used the most relevant contractual risk rate applicable to each categary of assets and l;ablhtles to discount
future cash flows. Where nona emsts the prime interest rate is used to discount future cash flows.

Allowance for doubtful debts _

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is imbaired.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment propetty

“The municipality's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the assets. Thts
-estimate is based on industry norm. : .

1.4 Property, plant and equipmerjt

.Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for. use in the
" production or supply of goods or sarvices, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during

more than one period.

The cost.of an item of property, plant and equipment is recegnised as an asset when:
. it is probable that future economic bensfits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the

municipality; and : . é;/
*  the cost of the item can be measurl‘f’reiiably. ‘ . o 'E(

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of properly, plant and equipment Is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and

rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an assst is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Whaere an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in ekchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipmant. '

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

14
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Property, plant and equipment (co'ntinued)

The'initial estimate of the costs of dismantfing and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a resuli of acquiring the asset or using_it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

ftems such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing eqmpment are recogmsed when they meet the deflnitlon of .
property, plant and equipment.

‘Majo'r inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria abave are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

F’ropérty, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment fosses.

Property, piant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depraciation and any impairment losses except for X,X and X
which is carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, .

Property, plant and eguipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. .

Revaluaticns are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

When an item of property, piant and equipment is revalued, any acoumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the assel after

revaluation eguals its revalued amount.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depraciation at the date of the revaiuation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the assst and the net amount restated {o the revalued amount of the asset,

Any increase in an assel's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognlsed In surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously

recognised in surplus or deficit.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, ak,a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current;ifr_iod.
The decrease Is debited directly to a revaluatlm surplus ta the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation su ? lus in

raspect of that asset.

The revaluation surpius in equity related to a specific ifem of pro'perty, blani and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.

The revaiuation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between depraciation based on the revalued
carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated an the over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumudated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The usefui lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item ) ) Depreciation method Average useful life

Land Straight-line indefinite

Buildings : Straight-line 20-30 Years

Leasehold property Straight-line 3-b Years
Straight-line 15-30 Years

Infrastructure

15
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Property, plant and equipment {continued)
Other property, ptant and equipment : © Straight-line 4-15 Years

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipmént' with a cost that is significant in refation to the total cost of tha item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are
expected fo be consumed by the municipality. The depreciation method applied ta an asset is reviewed at leas( at each
“feporting date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic.
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the municipallty expectations about the
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporiing date. If any such indication exists, the
municipality revises the expected useful fife andfor residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an

accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each penod is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrymg amount of
another asset, ’

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecegnised when the asset is disposed of or when thera are no further economic
benefits-or service potential expected from the use of the asset. .

The gain ar loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of properly, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, |f any, and the carrymg amount of the item.

The municipality separately discloses expendlture to repair and maintain property, p[ant and equipment in the notes to the
financial statements .

1.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any cantract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fi nanma% liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amertised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction {directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibifity, ‘g

e _ :
Derecognition is the removat of a previouslyli_;scognised financial asset or financial liakility from an entity's statement of;,
financial position. ’ ‘ : g

The effeclive interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financia! liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilitias) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense aver the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that sxactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when apprapriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering alt contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit logses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are anh Integral part of the effective
interest rate {(see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliabiy. However, in thase rare cases when it is not possible fo reliably estimate the cash flows or the expecled life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows cver the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settied, between knowledgeabie Willing parties in
an arm’s fength transaction.

A financial asset is:
. cash;
. a residual interest of another entity; or
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1.5 Financial instruments (contmued)

. a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another fi nanmal asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilifes with another entity under conditions that are potantially

favourahle to the entity.

A financial liabifity is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
. deliver cash or another financial asset to another enfity; or
° exchange financial assets or financial lizhilities under conditions that are potentialy unfavourable to the entity.
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1.5 Financial instruments {continued)

Transadtion costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable fo the acquisition, fssue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that wauld not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument. .

Initia! recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the municipalily becomes
a party to the contractuat provisions of the instrument.

The entity recagnises financial assets using frade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial iiabi[ities

The entity measures a financial asset and fmanCIaI lsablmy initially at its fair value pius transaction costs that are dn’ectly '
attributable to the acquisition ar issue of the financial asset or fnanma] liability.

Subseguent measurement of fmanclal assets and financial Ilabllltles

The municipality measures all financial assets and financial liabilittes after initial recognition using the following categeries:
Financial instruments at fair value. ' : .

Financial instruments at amortised cost,

Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amartised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Fair value measureament considerations -

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. if the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
municipality establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The cbjective of using a valuation technique is to establish
what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm's length exchange motivated by normal
operating considerations. Valuation fechnigues include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, reference fo the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing medels. If there is a valuation technigue commonly used by market participants to price
the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the municipality uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and
relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorparates all factors that market participants would consider in setiing a
price and is,consistent with accepted economic methadologias for pricing financial insiruments. Periodically, an municipality
calibrates # 'yvaluanon technique and tests it for validity using prices from any abss Qie current market transactions in the -
same mstrument (i.e. without modifi cahon or repackaging) or based on any available ioservable market data.

Rec!assﬁ'catmn
The municipality does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is!

combinad Instrument that Is required 1o be measured at fair value; or
an Investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

If fair value can ne longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the entity
reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer avaitable
becomes the cost.

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not
available, and the instrument wouid have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassnf'es the instrument from

cost to fair value.

Gains and losses

A gain arloss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

18




IKheis Local Municipality
{Registration number NC084) ]
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 |

- Accounting Policies

1.5 Financial instruments (continued)
For financial assets and financial liabilitles measured at amortised cost or cost a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit

when the financial asset or fi financial liabitity is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Irﬁpairment and uncoilectibility of financial assets

" The municipality assass at the end of each reportmg penod whether there is any objective evidence that a financiai asset or
group of financlal assets Is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amorﬁsed casl

If thete is abjective evidence that an impairment loss on financlal assels measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
“amount of the loss is measurad as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective’interest rate. The carrying ameunt of the asset is reduced direcily. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus ar

deficit.

If,ina subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 10 an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the
amartised cost wouid have baen had the impairment not been recogmeed at the date the impairmeni is reversed The amouni
of the reversal Is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost:

* If there is objactive evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured ai fair value becausae its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. -

Derecognition
Flnancial assets

The municipality derecognlses a financial asset only when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are setifed or waived;

the municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to selt the asset inits

entirety t@an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally ar%fmthout needing to impose

additiona: restrictions on the fransfer. In this case, the municipality: :

- derecog‘mse the asset; and :
- recognise separately any rights and obllgatlons created ar retained in the transfer

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or ob!igations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measurad at their fair values
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised

in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the municipality transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise elther a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the
feé to be received is not expected to compensate the municipality adequatety for performing the servicing, a servicing liability
for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value, If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate
compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is racognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of

an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial assat.

If, as a rasult of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the municipalily obtaining a
new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the municipality recognise the new financial
asset, finandial liability or sarvicing !iability at fair value,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the earrymg amaunt and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.5 Financial instruments {continued)

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part iransferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
pravious carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is derecognised, based on the refative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part derecognised and the sum of the con5|derat|on received for the part derecogmsed is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognmon because the municipality has retained substantially alf the risks and rewards of )
ownership of the transferred asset, the municipality cantinue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a
financial liability for the consideration received. In subsaquent pericds, the municipality recognises any reventie on the
transferred asset and any expense incurred on the finangial liability. Nsither the asset, and the associated Ilablllty nor the
revenue, and the associated expenses are offset. .

Financial [|ab|||t|es

The municipality remaves a financial Jiability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished - .. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

_ Presentation

Intersst relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit. '

Losses and gains relating to a financial mstrument or & component that is a fmanmal I:aballty is recognlsed as revenue or
expense in surpius or deficit.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount prasented in the statement of financial bosition
when the entity currently has a legally enfarceable right to set off the recogmsed amounts and intends either to settle on a net
. basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultansously.

1.6 Statutory receivables

identification

Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, suppomng regulations, or similar means, and require
settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of;manmal position.
e
transactidn amount, plus any accrued interest or other charges (where applicable) gnd, less any accumulated impairment

Y
The cost 5nethod is the method used to account for statutory receivables that requns-s such receivables to be measured at thelr
losses and any amounts derecoghised.

The transaction amount for a statutary receivable means the amount specified in, or calculated, levied or charged in
accordance with, lagislation, supporting regulations, or simitar means.

Recognition

The municipality recognises statutory receivables as follows:
. if the transaction is an exchange transaction, using the pelicy on Revenue from exchange transactions;
. if the transaction is a non-exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions

(Taxes and transfers); or
. if the transaciion is not within the scope of the policies listed in the above or another Standard of GRAP, the

receivable is recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the transaclion amount ¢an be

measured reliably,

Initial measurement

The municipalily initially measures statutory receivables at their transaction amount,
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1.6 Statutory receivahles (continued)

Subseque'nt measurement

The municipality measures statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the
initial measurement of the receivable Is changed subsequent to initial recognition to reflect any:

. interest or other charges that may have accrued on the recelvable {where applicable);

*  impairment losses; and

° amounts derecognised.

Accrued interest

Where the municipality levies interest on the outstanding balance of statutory réceivab[es, it adjusis the transaction amount

after initial recognition to reflect any accrued interest. Accrued interest is calculated using the nominal interest rate.

Interast on statutory receivables is recagnised as revenue in accordance with the palicy on Revenue from exchange
transactlons orthe pohcy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions {Taxes and transfers), whichever is apphcable

Impalrment losses

The municipality assesses at each reporiing dale whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of
statutory receivables, may be impaired, .

In assessing whéther there is any indicaticn that a statutory receivable, or group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the
rmunicipality considers, as a minimum, the following indicators:
s Significant finarcial difficulty of the debtor which may be evidenced by an application for debt counsellmg, business
rescue or an equivalent.
« ltis probable that the debtor wilt enter sequestratlon liquidation or other financial re-organisation. .
® A breach of the terms of the transaction, such as defauit or dellnquency in principal or interest payments (whera

levied).
. Adverse changes in‘international, national ot local economic conditions, such as a decline in growth, an increase in

debt lavels and unemplayment, or changes in migration rates and patterns.

If there is an indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the munlmpallty
measures e impairment loss as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the
carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, or group of
statutory receivables, is reduced, sither dlrectly or through the use of an allowance account The amaount of the losses is:

recognised in surplus or deficit.

An lmpalrment joss recognised in prior periads for a statutod;ecelvabie is rewsed if there has been a change in the estimates
used since the last impairment loss was recogmsed ar to re; =ect the effect of discounting the estlmated cash flows.

- Any previously recognised impairment loss is adjusted either directly or by acijustlng the allowance account. The adjustment-

does not result in the carrying amount of the statutory receivable or group of statutory receivables exceeding what the carrying
amount of the receivable(s) would have been had the impairment loss not been recognised.at the date the impairment is
revised. The amount of any adjustment is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Derecognition

The munlcnpallty derecognises a statutory receivable, or a part thereof, when:

. the rights to the cash flows from tha receivable are settled, expire or are waived;

. the municipatity transfers to another party substantialiy all of the risks and rewards of ownershlp of the receivable; or

+  the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of cwnership of the receivabie, has
transferred contrai of the receivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the receivable
in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ahility uniiaterally and withaut needing fo impose
additional restrictions on the transfer, In this case, the entity:
- derecognise the receivabie; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer,
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1.6 Statutory receivables {continued)

The cafrying amounts of any statutory receivables transferred are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and
those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. The entity considers whether any newly created
rights and obligations are within the scope of the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments or another Standard of GRAP. -
Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts derecognised and, those amounts recognised, are
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer. .

1.7 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where mventorles are acquired through a non-axchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

. Where inventory is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange trénsaction), the cost is
" deemed to be equal ta the fair value. of the itam on the date acqmred

Inventories, consisting of censumable stores, raw matenals work-in- progress and finished goods, are valued at the Iower of
cost and net realisable value unless they are ta be distribuied at no or nominal charge, in which case they-are measured at the

lower of cost and current replacement cost.

Redunc%ant and slow-moving inventories are identified and written down in this way. Differences arising on the valuation of
Inventory are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which they arose. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventaries arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the inventory was sold,'distribute'd, written off
or consumed, unless that cost qualifies for capitalisation to the cost of another asset.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formuta. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the municipality. :

1.8 Impalrment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objectwe of generatlng a commarcial return. Commercial return means that
positive cash flows are expacted to be significantly higher than the cost of the assst.

Impairment is a loss in the future econemic benefits or service potential of an _asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset’s future economic henefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation}.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognﬁeod in the statement of f|nancnal position after deductmg any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment log )es thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identift able group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return
that generates cash inflows from: continuing use that are Iargely 1ndependent of the cash mﬂows from other assets or groups of

assels.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attnbutable ta the disposal of an asset, exciuding finance costs and income tax
expense,

Depreciation {Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an army’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverabie amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful lifa is either:
. the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the munlc:lpailty or
. the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.
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1.8 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)

Designation

At initial recognition, the mumc;pallty designates an asset as non- -cash-generating, or an asset or cash-gensrating umt as cash-
generating. The designation is made on the basis of a municipality's objective of using the asset.

The municipality designates an asset or a cash-generating unit as cash-generating when:
. its objective is to use the asset or a cash-generating unit in a manner that generates a commercial return; such that
. the assat or cash-generating unit wili generate positive cash flows, fram contmumg use and its uliimate disposal, that

are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

An asset used with the objective of generatlng a commerctal return and service delivery, is designated either as a cash-

- generating asset or non-cash-generating asset based on whether the municipality expects to use that asset to generate a )
commercial return, When it is not clear whether the objective is to use the assat to generate commercial return, the municipality

designates the asset as a non-cash-generating asset and applies the accountmg policy on Impa|rmer|t aof Non- cash -generating
assets, rather than this accounting policy.

!dentlficatlon
When the carrylng amount of a cash -generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount itis |mpa|red

The municipality assesses at each- reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may he
impaired. If any such indication exists, the munlcnpahty estimates the recoverable amaunt of the asset. )

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the municipality also tests a cash-generating |ntang|ble asset with
an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible -
asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible assst was tested for impairment before the end

of the current reporting period.

Value in use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the

. continuing use of an asset and from its dispasal at the end of its useful life.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and cutffows to be denved

fram continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to

those fuiure cash flows.
4
g

Discount rate

The discount rate is a pre-iax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, reprasented by the
current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specn" ¢ to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not heen

adjusted.
Recognition and measurement {individual asset)

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount; the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. '

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

- When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it

relates, the municipality recognises a liabllity only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.

After tha recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amoﬂisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its rasidual value (|f any), on a systematic
basis aver its remaining useful life.

23




IKheis Local Municipality
{Registration number NC084)
Arnual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Accounting Policies

1.8 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)

Cash-generat_ing _units

If there is -any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverabie amount'is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possibie to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of the -
cash-generating unit to which the. assst belongs (the asset's cash- generating unit).

If an active market exists.for the output produced by an asset or group of assats, that asset or group of assets is identified as a
cash-generating unit, even if someé or all of the output is-used intemnally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or ¢ash-
genherating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the munl(:lpalrty use management's best estlmate of future price(s) that
could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating: .
. the future cash inflows used fo determine the asset's or cash- generatmg unit's value in use; and
. the future cash outflows used to determins the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are
affected by the internal transfer pricing.

Cash- generatmg units are ldentlf ad consnstently from period to perlod for the same asset or types of assats, unless a change
- is justified. :

~The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determlned ona baS|s consistent W|th the way the recoverable amount of the
cash- genera{;ng unit is determined. :

An impairment loss is reoognlsed fora cash generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is Iess than the carrymg
amount of the unit. The Impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the uniton a
pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrytng amounts are freated as
impairment Iosses on individual assets.

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an assef below the highest of:
« . its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
. its value in use (if dsterminable); and
. zero,

-The amount of the impairment Ioss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset i is allecated pro rata ioc the other
cash-generating assets of the unit. .

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a praportion of the cairying amount of that non-
cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable

amount of the cash-generating unit.

24




IKheis Local Municipality

{Registration number NC084)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Accounting Policies

1.8 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)

Reversal of impalrment loss

“The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior .
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity

estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-genarating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying
amount of ihe asset is Increased to lts recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an |mpa|rment loss. The increased
carrying amount of an asset atiributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

periods.

A reversal af an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
_Any' raversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit Is alfocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pra rata with
the carrying amounts of those asseis. These increases i carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is a!focated to a non-cash- generatlng asset contributing service
potential to a cash-generating unit,

In allocating a reversat of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above

the lower of: ]
. its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
. the carrying amount that would have been datermined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no nmpalrment loss

been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

The amount of the reversal of the lmpalrment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assels of the unit. .

Redesignation

The redesignation oféassets from a cash- generatmg asset to a non-cash-generating asset or fré’m a-non-cash- generating asset
to a cash-generatingsasset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation |§i appropriate.

1.9 [mpairment of non-cash-generating assets

) Cash-generating'assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

MNon-cash-generating assets are assets othar than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amotunt at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash infiows from other assets or

groups of assets,

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly atiributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.
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1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)
Depreciation {Amartisation) is the systematic alfocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an afm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

- Recoverable sarvice amount is the higher of a non-cash-generaling asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Usefui life is either: : _ :
. the pericd of time over which an asset is expected 1o be used by the municipality; or -
. the number of production ar similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality. -

Judgements made by management in applying the criteria to designate assets as non-cash-generating assets or cash-
generating assets, are as follows:

[Spacity judgements made]

Identification

"When the carrying amount of a hon-cash-generating asset exceads its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

" The municipality assesses at each reporting date whather there is any indication that & non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indicaticn exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amaunt of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, thé entity also tests a non-cash-generating intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable senvice amount. This impairment test Is performed at the same time every
year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for
impairment before the end of the current reporting periad. s

o
~
i
N
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1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets {continued}

Vaiue in use

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is t'he present value of the non~cash-generating assets remaining sarvice potential,

The present value of the remaining service potential of a hon-cash-generating assets is determmed usmg the following
approach:

- Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash- -generating asset is determined as the ciepreclated
replacement cost of the assel. The rep%acement cost of an asset is the cost to repiace the asset's gross service potential. This’
cost is depreciated to refect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be repiaced sither through reproduction {replication}
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potentlal. The depraciated replacement cost Is meastrad as
the current reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less acourulated depreciation calculated on the
basis of such cosl, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an "optimised” basis. The rationale is that the
municipatity would not reptace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to' be replaced or reproduced is an

. overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services
the assel provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for
goods or services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or repreduction caost of an asset on an -

aptimised basis thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.

Restoration cost approach

Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre- |mpa:red level. The present value of the
remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from the
current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is determined as the
depreciatad reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichaver is lower.

Service units approach

The present value of the remaining service potentral of the asset is determmed by reducing the current cost of the remaining
service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of service units expected from the asset in
its impaired state. The current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment is determmed as
the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before impairmant, whichever is lower.

Recognltlonanc‘measurement : - o ‘//

If the recoverablek service amount of a non-cash- generaisng asset is Iess than its carrying ainount the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment ioss

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating assat.is treated as a revatuation decrease.

When the amount estimated foran impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating assst's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),

on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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1.9 [Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)

Reversal of an impairment loss

. The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased, lf any such indication exists, the
municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment |oss recegnised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset Is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount, The increass is a reversal of an impairment loss.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have heen determined {net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been racognised for the

asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any reversal of an 1mpa|rment lossof a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversal of an Impairment loss is recognised, the deprectatlon {amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset
is adjusted inh future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating. asset's revised carrymg amount, less its residual vatue (if any),

‘on a systematic basis over its remaining useful fife.

Redemgnatlon

The redesignation of assets from a cash- generatlng asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset
to a cash-generating asset only ocecur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate.

1.10 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by emgloyees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard
aof GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund
employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not availahle to the reporting entity's own creditors (even in quidation)
and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:

. the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee henefit

" obligations; or
. the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee ;enef its already paid.

” v
Tefmination biaefils are employes benefits payable as a result of either:
. an thtys decision-to terminate an employee's employment before the normea retirement date; or -
. an employee's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other Iong.uterm employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) tha.t
are not due fo be settied within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service!

Vested employee benefits are employese benefits that are not conditional on future employment.

Composite social security programmes are established by legistation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-
employment benefits as well as o provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service renderaed by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity's actions where by an established pattern of past practice,
published. policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to cther parties that it will accept certain
rasponsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other partles that it will discharge

those responsm:lltles
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110 Employee benefits (continued)’
Shol‘t—term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employse benefits {other than terminatlon benefts) that are due to he seitled within twelve
months after the end of the pericd in which the employees render the related service. ’

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

= wages, salaries and social security contributions;

=, short-term compensated absencas (such-as paid annual leave and paid sick feave) where the compensatfon for the
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and

. non-monetary benefits {for example, medical care, and free or subsndlsed goods or services such as housmg, cars

- and cellphones) for current employees. .

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognlses the undlscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits expectad to be paid in exchange for that sarvice:

. as a lishility (acerued expense), after deducting ary amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amounit of the henefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense)to the sxtent.
that the prepayment will fead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a.cash refund; and

. as an expense, unless another Standard requnres or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised asan expense as the employees render sarvices that increase
their entilement or, in the case of hon-accumuiaiing absences, when the absence ocours. The entity measures the expected
-cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additianal amount that the antity expects to pay as a result of the unused

entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the expected cost of banus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present chligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments

Post-employment heneﬁts

Post-employment benefit plans are format or informai arrangements under which an enfity provides post employment benerts
for one or more employees.

Post -employment benefits: Deflned contnbutlon plans

o e
Define (contnbuhon plans are post- employment benefil plans under which an erbity pays fixed contnbunons into a separate
entity fa fund) and will have no legal or canstructive obligation 1o pay further CGn!‘IbUtIOHS if the fund does not hoid sufficisnt
assets to pay alf employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periads.

When an employee has rendered service to the enfity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the contribution payable
to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service: '
+  as a liabifity {accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceads the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognises that excess as an asset
{prepaid expense) to the axtent that the prepayment will Iead to, far example, a reduction in future payments or a

- cash refund; and
* asan expenss, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.

Where cantributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value
" of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the tlme value of money is consistent with the
currency and estimated term of the obligation.
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1.10 Employee benefits {continued)
Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans _
Defi ned benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than def ned contribution plans

The entity recognises the net-total of the followmg amaounts in surpius or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:

bt current service COSt

«  interast cost;

. actuarial gains and losses;

The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present vaiue of its defined benefit obligations and the
refated.current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as
the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefitfyears of service methad} sees each period of service as
giving rise to an additional unit-of benefit enttlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Acfuarial valuations are conducted on an annuafl basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The results of the
valuation are updated for any material transactions and olher material changes in c:rcumstances (|ncludmg changes in market

prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.
Actuaria[ assumpiions
Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible

Financial assumphons are based on market expectations, at the reportmg date, for the period over whm?l the obligations are to
he settled. :

Thé rate used fo disbount post-employrment benefit obligations'{both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money.
The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the Gurrency
and eslimated term of the post- employment benefit obligations.

Post- employment henefit obligations are measured on a basis ihat reﬂects

. estimated future salary increases; ’
. the benefits set out in the terms of the plan {or resulting fram any constructive obligation that goes heyond those :

terms) at the reporting date; and
. estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefi its payable under a defi ned benef t

plan, if, and anly if, either:

. those changes wera enacted before the reporting date; or

+ past history, or other chable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some l:kﬁdicilable manner,
for exampfe, in line wf:,qh future changes in general price levels or general salary levels.

Assumyptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medncai serwceg resulting from baoth
inflation and specific changes in med|ca| cosls.

Other post retiremen-t o_bligations

 The municipality offers various types of Iong'se'rvice awards to [ts ernployees. The provision is to recagnise the present value of
the obligationas at the reporting date.

1.1 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised whan: )
. the municipality has a present obligation as a resuit of a past event; .
. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodymg aconamic benefits ar service potennal will be required to

settle the obligation; and
* areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
axpected to be required to settle the obligaticn.
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1.11 Provisions and contingencies {continued)

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate ihat reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specn‘"c to
the itabmty

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the

reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that relmbursement will be recelived if the municipality
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate assel. The amouni recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision. - . .

Provisions are reviewed at each reportmg date and adjusted to reflact the current bast estimata. Prowsaons are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an ouiﬁow of resources embadying economic benefits or sarvice potential will be required, to settle the .
cbiigation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increasas in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is usad only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit).

[f an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present ohligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: . _
. has a detailed formal plan for the restrucluring, identifying al least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of an aclivity/operating unit concetned;

- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of emp!oyees who wri! he compensated for sarvices being

terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and
. has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructurmg by starting to implement that

plan ar announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A resiruciuring provision includes only the direct expend:tures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
. necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and -
. not assoclated with the ongoing activities of the municipaiity

Ne aobiigation arises as a coné:equence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is cci;gmitted to the sale
o transfer, that is, there is a ,mdmg arrangement.

After their initial recognition contlngent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised zeparately are
subsequently measured at the higher of: :

. the amourit that would be recognised as a prowsnon and

¢ the amount initially recognised less cumulative amartisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note .

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to maka paymant when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a

debt instrument.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantses and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obiigation and a reliable estimate of

the abligation can be made.

Determining whether an outﬂow of resoutces is probabie in relation to flnanC|aI guarantees requires judgement. Indications that

an outflow of resources may be probable ara:
. firancial difficulty of the debtor;
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1.11 Provisions and contlngen(:les (continued)
= defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
° breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the

ahbility of the dabtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
«  adecline in pravailing economic circumstances {e.g. hrgh interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on

the -ability of entities 1o repay their obllgatlons

Where a fee is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantes-and/or where a fee is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date.
Where a fee is charged and the municipality considers that an outflow of economic resources'is probable, an municipality

recognises the obligation at'the hlgher of:
. the amount determined using in ihe Standard of GRAP on Prowsmns Contingent Liabilittes and Contingent Assels;

and
. the amount of the fee |n|t|a|[y recognised less, where appropriate, sumulative amortisation recognised in accordarice

with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions. -

112 Commltments

lterns are classified as commltments when an entlty has commltted itself to future transactlons that will normaily result in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrebognised contractual commitments.

" Commitments far which disclasure i is necessary to achieve a fair presentatlon ‘should be disclosed in a note to the financial

statements, if both the following criteria are met:
. Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancelEab]e at significant cost {far example, confracts for computer or

building maintenance services), and
° Contracts shoud relate to scmething other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity — therefore salary
commrtments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.13 Revenue fram exchange transactlans

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the municipality directly i in return for services rendered 7
goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable.

Measurement

Revanue shail be measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebatesﬁ_;)/AT and other similar allowances. i/
' W . ]

Sale of goods s

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substannally all the risks and rewards of ownershlp of the goods is
passed to the consumer, :

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all conditions associated with the deed of sale have been met.
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1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions {continued}

Rendering of services

Flat rate service charges relating to electricity which are based on consumption are matered and an estimate of

consumptxon between the latest meter reading and the reporting date shall be racognised when:
* It is probable that the economic benefits or setvice potential assomated with the transaction will flow to the mummpahty,

and,
- The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Meters are read an a monthly basis and are recognised as revenue when invoiced. Provisional estimates of censumptions
are made monthly when meter readings have not been performed and are recognised as revenue when invoiced.
Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made then recognised in the statement of financial performance in
the invoicing period in whlch meters have been read. .

Serwce charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on a monthly basis by applying the approved tariff to each
property that has improvements. Tariffs are determined per category of property usage and are levied monthly basad on the
number of refuse containers on each preperty, regardiess of whether or not containers are emptued during the month,

Revenue from the sale of electricity prepald meter credit is recognlsed at the paint of sele

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliabiy, revenue is recogmsed
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue Is recoghised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporung date. Stage of
completlon is determined by .

Interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entliy assets yleldlng interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is

racagnised whan:
. it is probable that the economic beneflts or service polential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipality, and
. The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably,

interest is recognised using the effective-interest rate method for f nancial instruments, and using the neminal interest rate
method for statutory receivables. Interest lavied on transactions arising from exchange or non-exchange transactions is
classified based on the nature of the underlying transaction.

Royaltles are recogmsé;j(as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant ag;iwments

Dividends or similar dlS‘rlbﬂtlonS are recognised, in surplus or deﬂolt when the munlmpalttys ngh? to receive payment has
been established.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenus over the period during which the service is
performad.

1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a municipality, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners,

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embadied in
the asset is reguired to be consumad by ihe recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be

raturned o the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the municipalily can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can
exclude or otherwise regulate the access of othars te that benefit.

Exchange transactions are fransactions in which one entily receives assets or services, or nas liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assels} to another entity in

exchange.
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1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or not they pay-
taxes

Fines are economic benefits or service potential recewed or receivable by entities, as determined by a couri or other law
enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of faws or regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchangs transacuon a municipality
either receives value frem anaother municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange or gives value to
another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal vatue iri exchange.

Restrictions on transferrad assets are stipulat%ons that Iimit or direct tha purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed .
as specifiad. . . '

Stlpulatlons on transferred assets are terms in laws of regulation, or a bmdlng arrangement |mposed upon the use of a
fransferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that prowde certain taxpayers with concessions that are not avaﬂable .
to others,

- The taxable event is the event that the government, Iegiclature or other a_utherity has determined will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or
regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes da not mciude fines or other penalttes smposed for breaches

of the law.

*Transfars are Inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from. non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not reccgnlsed the munlmpahty recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. :

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the deﬂmtmn of an asset and
satlsfy the criteria for recognition. as an asset. :

Transfarred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. . ) g/
X g L . : ) ’ ) 3
Ftnes o . ' S . -

Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for recognltlon
as an asset. : :

-Assets arising frorn fines are measuret:t at the hest estimate of the inﬂow of resources fo the municihality.
" Where the municipality collects fines in the capecity of an agent., the fine will nat be revenue of the collecting entity.
1.15 investment income . |
Invesiment income is recagnised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
1.16 Borrowing costs ..
Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity' in connection with the borrawing of functs.
Borm\.\ring costs are recognised as an expense in the period in-which they are incurred.
1.17 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.,
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1.17 Comparative figures {continued) '

When-the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative -
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed. Where accounting arrars have baen
identified in the current year, the correction is made retraspectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are
restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is- made
-retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. )

1.18 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
. overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and :
. expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not In accordance with

the purpose of the main division.

Unauthorised expendilure is accounted for in line with all relating'requirer'r'lents, including, but not limited 1o, ruling Legislation,
Regulations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instriction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines ete {as applicable).

1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for in line with all relating requiréments including, but not limited to, ruling
L agislation, Reguiations, Frameworks, Circulars, instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as appllcable}

1.20 Irregular expenditure

- Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act {Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act Na. 20 of 1998) arisin contraventlon of the
economic entity's supply chain management policy.

Irregular expenditure is accounted for in fine with all relating requirements, including, but net limited to, ruling Legistation,
Regulations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as applicable). -

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was moilrred and identified during the current financial year and for which condo#;ment is being
sawaited at year end must be rec ded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is requwed with:the exception of

"“updating the note to the fi nancial tatements _ ) 7 :

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous fmanclal year and is only condoned in the following financial year the
register and the disclosure note {o the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

[rregular expenditure is expenditure. that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act {Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act {Act No. 20 of 1998) or is'in contravention of the
economic entity’s supply chain management palicy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. lrregular
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenus in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.21 Housing development fund

The Housing Development Fund was established in terms of the Housing Act, (Act No. 107 of 1997). Loans from national and
provincial government used to finance housing selling schemes undertaken by the municipality were extinguished on 1 April
1988 and transferred to a Housing Development Fund. Housing selling schemes, both complete and in progress as at 1 April
1098, were also transferred to the Housing Development Fund. In terms of the Housing Act, all proceeds from housing
davelopments, which include rental income and sales of hauses, must be paid into the Housing Development Fund. Monies
standing to the cradit of the Housing Development Fund can be used only to finance housing developmants within the

. municipal area subject to the approval of the Provincial MEC responsible for housing.
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1.22 Budget information

‘Municipality are typically subject tob'udgetary limits in the form of appropriations of budgat autharisations (or equivalent), which
is given effect through autharising tegislation, apprapriation or similar.

Generat purpose financial reporting by municipaiity shall prowde information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget. .

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basus and presanted by economic classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal perlod from 2020/07/01 ta 2021/06!30.
The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted
amourts for the reporting period have been included In the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts,

1.23 Related parties

A related party is a parson of an entity with the-ability-to'dontrol of jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that Is subject to common contral, or joint control,

Contral is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a blnding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operaling decisions relatlng to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the

venturers),

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or ob!ngahons between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardiess of whether a price is charged

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not ccntrol over
those policies.

Management are those persons respensible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including
those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with Ieglslatlon in instances where they are required {o

perform such functions.

Close members of the family of 2 person are those famlly members who may be expected to influence, o&,‘be influenced by that
parson in their dealings with th’ municipatity.

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transactmn oceurs within
narmal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on-terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is
reasonable to expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances
and terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity's legal mandate.

Where the municipality is exemp{ from the disclosures in accordance with the abave, the municipality discloses narrative
information about the nature of the fransactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity's financial
statements to understand the effect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements.

1.24 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reportmg date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two lypes of events can be identified:
«  those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date {adjusting events after the reporting date);

and
. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date {non-adjusting events after the reporting

date).

The municipality will adjust the amount recognlsed in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event occurred.
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1.24 Events after reporting date {continued)

The municipality wil disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate
cannot ba made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions
of users faken on the hasis of the financial statements.

A-;m?;g.. —
- \\
\
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Figures in Rand 2021 2020

2. New standards and interpretations
2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

in the current year, the municipality has adopted the followmg standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

_ Standard/ Interpretation: : ‘ Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or
o after . :
. GRAP18 : Segment Reporting 01 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a
' : materiai impact
. GRAP108 ; Statutory Receivables 01 April 2020 . Unlikely there will be a
B . material impact
. GRAP 110: Living and Non-living Resources _ 01 April 2020 Unlikely there wifl be a
' S ' o material impact
* GRAP34 :Seperate financial statements T 01 Aprit 2020 Unlikely there will ke a
_ ' . material impact
* GRAP35 :Consolidated financial statements 01 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a
o : _ : : material iImpact
. GRAP36 :Investments in associates and Joint Veniures 01 April 2020 - Unlikely there will be a
i : material impact
¢ GRAP37 :Joint Arrangements .01 April 2020 : Unlikaly thers will be a

material impact

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the following standards and inferpretations, which have been published and are fnandatory
for the municipality's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2021 or iater periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: : Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or o
: : after _
. GRAP 104: Financial instruments Approved but not yat Unlikely there will be a
" . effective material impact
. GRAP 25: Employee Benefits Approved buf not yet Unlikely there will be a
effective material impact
.. iGRAPY: Limjt on a defmed benefit asset min fund Approved but not yet l Unlikely there will be a
requirement fﬁd interact ‘effective. . _ « material impact
. iGRAP21 : ThF effects of past decisions on mater!ahty 01 Aprit 2023 . Undikely there will be a
. material impact
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Land

Buildings

Motor vehicles
Offica equipment

T equipment
Infrastructure
Community .
Gther property, plant and equipment
Other leased Assets
Landfill Asset

Work in Progress

Total

2021 2020
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost / Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
" oand - and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
57 543 924 - 57 543 824 57 544 924 - 57544924
3 590 896 (3 407 398y 183 498 3 590 896 (3 382 457) 208 432
. 4447925 (4 321381) 121 544 4 442 925 (4 197 836) 245 089
494 920 (488 521) 6399 508 249 (497 942) 13 307
2756925 (2616 142} 140 783 3 150 593 (2892 417) 258 178
205520822 (169 549 528) 35971294 202541759 (156703 692) 45 838 067
12580 608 . (10 507 824) 2042784 12 553 850 (9912.770) 2 641 080
146 287 (129 216) 17 G71 150 092 (128 470) 21622
3620718  (2780768) 848 950 3629 718 (2780 768) 848 95¢
45001 510 (3823218} 41178294 48 824 195 (1953608) 44870587
66 477 353 .- 66 477 353 52733181 - 52733181
(197 623 994) 204 531 894 387 670 382 (182449 960) 205 220 422

402 155 888

O

e
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021

tand -

Buildings

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

IT equipment

Infrastructure

Commuiity

Other property, plant and equipment

Other leased Assets

Landfill Asset
“Work in Progress

Opening Additions Disposals - Transfers . Other changes, Depreciation.  Impairment Total
hatance i _ movements loss

57 544 924 - (1 000} - - i - - 57543924
208 439 - - - - (24 941) - 183 488
245089 - - - - (123 545) - 121 544
10 307 - - - - (3 908) - 6399
258 176 - (1383) - - (116 010} - 140 783
45 838 067 - (182) - - (7 117 148) (5749 485). 32971294
2641080 - - - - (396 446) (201 850} 2042 784
21822 - (7 - - {4 544) - 17 071
848 950 - - - - - - 848 950
44 870 587 - - - (1822685) (18698608 - 411478294
52733 181 12 198 286 . - 1545 886: - - - 86477353
205 220 422 12 198 286 (2 552) 1545 886 {1822685) (9656148) (5951315 201531 894

-
b
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued) .

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020

-Land
Buildings
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Infrastructure
Community
Other property, plant and equipment
Other |leased Assets
Landiill Asset
Work in Progress

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2021

Opening baiance
_Additions/capital expenditure
Transferred to completed items

Ocm:_.nw,m&,...ﬁ.-!ba%monm Other changes Depreciation Total
balance )
57 544 924 - - - 57 H44 924
233 380 - - (24 941) 208 439
490 176 - - (245 087) 245089
20612 ' - - {10 305) S10307
211529 138 174 - (91527) 258 175
52 955 213 - - {7117 147} 45838066
3 037 506 - - (396 428) 2641080 -
32 298 - - {10 674) 21622
1955 884 - : - {1106 934) 848 950
48 840 203 - {2 016 008) {1953 608) 44870587
44 878 343 7 854 8338 - - 52 733 181
210 200 066 7993 012 (2016 008) (10 956 649) 205 220421
Included within Total
Infrastructure
23144 977 23144 977
12533180 12 533180
(3012126) (3012 126)
32 666 031 32 666 031
N

e AR e
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Raw materials, compohents

Figures in Rand 2021 2020
3.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Recongiliation of Work-in-Progress 2020
Included within Total
Infrastructure
Opening baiance 16 186 405 16 186 405
 Additions/capital expenditure 6 958 572 6 958 572
23144 977. 23144 977
' The following projects are identified as slow mov'ing; Reason for Cancellation Amount
Construction of Sewer Reticulation Pump station and rising main to Termination due te non - - 8 641 044.39
Treatment Plan in Grootdrinkt . . perfomances
- Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment
Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment
included in Statement of Financial Performance
Buildings- 58 041 -
- Infrastructure 30 895 -
Vehicles _ 44 389 -
Other Property, Plant and Equipment 7002 -
o 140 337 -
4. Inventories
19199 19199

In respect of consumables, the municpality purchases inventory as and when it is required for use, The halance of prior year
inventory has been impairad due to the items being old and becoming obsoiete

5. Receivables from exchange transactions

Sundry Debtors

B. Recéﬁables from non-exchange transactions
§ g ‘

Censumer deblors - Rates

Unalfocated Deabtors

' 7. Consumer debtors

Gross balances
Water

Sewerage

Refuse

Unaliocated Debtors
Other Debtors

3 609434

_ 2752324
b |
? - 9777427 8541930
(8510374) (8510 374)
1267 053 31 556
24490 117 19706 254
14110693 11229 834
20994 467 16891373
10187 668 . 9057 443
3649833 3747805
73432678

60 632 709
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Figures in Rand

2021

2020

7. -. Consumer debtors {continued)

Less: Allowance for impairment
Waler

Sewerage

Refuse

Other Debtors

Net balance

Water

Sewerage

Rafuse

Unallocated Debtors
Other Debtors

Water

Current (0 -30 days)
31 - 860 days

61 - 90 days

91 -120 days

121 - 365 days

> 365 days

L.ess Impairment

" Sewerage - :
Current {0 -30 days)
31 - 60 days

61 - 80 days

91 - 120 days

121 - 365 days

> 365 days

Lass Igr_;galrment

P
Refuse
Current (0 -30 days)
31 - 60 days i
81 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
121 - 365 days
> 365 days
Less Impairment

(11 095 810)

(11 695 810y

(6426723)  (6426723)
(9796 111) {9796 111)
(3864 493) (3864 493)
(31183 137) (31 183 137)
" 13 394 307 8610 444
7 683 870 4803 111
11 198 356 7 095 262
40 187 668 9057 443,
{214 680) {116 '688)
42 249 541 29 449 572
11 560 10 250
345 829 *389 786
400 598 . 302 457
450 621 280 404
321 500 320 858
12 500 845 13 736 684
(636 646) (6 458 995)
13 394 307 8 610 444
1 580 2004
165 220 155 964
265 897 154 238
152 601 151 892
170586 172 035
8950 215 7 832 048
(2022229) {3465 070)
7683870 4803111
2510 2082
265 200 228 523
241 266 224 495
250 889 " 219 191
252 140 247 716
12 522311 11422 721
(2335960) {5 249°446)
11198 356 7 095 262
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7. GConsumer debtors (continued)

Other Debtors

Cugrent {0 -30 days) 4250 . 5200

31-- 80 days 210 566 - 215026

61 - 80 days 225800 214 520

91 - 120 days 241 899 220 600

121 - 365 days 315200 . 315 200

> 365 days 11895204 10852 600

Impairment (2 705 251) - (2 765 703)
' 10 187 668 9057443

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand - 52 1897 .

Bank balances 1824 381 1942473

Short-term deposits 3157 919 741393

4 982 352 2685763

The municipality had the following hank accounts

Account humber / description

First National Bank Branch: - -59 689 31 200
Grablershoap Account number
62026193441 '

First National Bank Branch:
Groblershoop Account number
62150559486 - FMG/MSIG .
First National Bank Branch: 5 356 106 715
Grgblershoop Account number . .

62354431828 - Library Account :
First National Bank Branch: 1082 a2
Gr&blershoop Account number

82304432123 - LOTTO account

First National Bank Branch: 2 906 593 355 561
Grablershoop Account number

62102417567 - MIG Account -

First National Bank Branch: 131 385 122 561
Grablershoop. Account number ' ' S
71129793878 - BUSS Eff

First Nationai Bank Branch: ) - -
Groblershoop Account number

62364746986 - Pula Nala .

First National Bank Branch: - 152 206
Groblershoop Accouni number
62364746580 :

107 495 4 268

_ Bank statement balances . _
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 .June 2019 30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2018

144 628
192

5078
’

1682678

113819

28

641

Cash book balances

1824 381

3157 919

1942473

741 393

164 997

1802 317

" Total 3211 580 772 593

1946 946

2 683 866

1967 314

4982300

44




IKheis Local Municipality
(Registration number NC084)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

_Notes fo thé Annual Financial Statements
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9. Finance lease obiigation
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 793 426 705 267
- in second to fifth year inclusive 159 693 953 119
) 953 119 1.658 386
less: future finance charges (53 435) (171718}
Present value of minimum lease payments 899 684 1 486 667
Analysis of lease liability
Current Partion of Lease liability 742 274 - 586 984
Non-Current Portion of lease fiability 157 409 899 684
899 683 1486 668
Non-current liabilities " 1559748 1559748
Current liabilities 874830 874 830
2434578 - 2434578
118 283 170 939

Interest for the year

it is municipality policy to lease certain equipment under finance leases. The Municipality have entered into two {2) finance
leases for a period of five (5) years to lease multipurpose printers with Nashua. The lease agreements commenced 1 August

2017 and 1 January 2018 with an annual rental increase of 15% and 12.5% respectively.

10. Unspent conditional grants and receipts-
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Water Service Infrastructure Grant
. Disaster Management Grant

Library : ) - _
i | L
MG grants - X . R
jUnspent grants 7 ’ s :

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Transfer to. Revenue

Roll-over denied and refunded

3558771 . 1471459
(67 000) -
121 643 54 643

113070 360070
4822203 | 8304203
(280 713) -
8267974 . 10190 375
10190375 7136402
5950312 15388 000
- {12334 027)

(7 872 713) -
8267974 10190 375

The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the annual financial statements and an indicalion of ather forms of
government assistance from which the municipality has directly benefited; and unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies

attaching to government assistance that has been recognised.

45




P .c\m.....

IKheis Local Munici'p'ality

{Registration number NC084)

 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2021 . 2020

10. Unspent conditional grants and receipts {continued)

The municipality has complied with all the conditions set by the transferring organs of state or the conditions set by the other
institutions wha made allocations to the municipality. The Unspent portion of conditional allocations are disclosed as unspent
conditional grants on the face value of the Statement of Financial Posnmn of the municipality.

See note for reconcitiation of grants frem National/Provincial Government.

Thasa amaounts are fnvested in a ring-fenced investment until utilised.

11. . Provisions

Recongiliation of provisions - 2021

Opening Additions Total
) : Balance
Environmental rehabiitation ) 50 703 914 1934 830 52 638 744
Reconciiiation of provisions - 2020
Opening Additicns Total
- Balance
Environmental rehabilitation . 48 840 203 1863711 50703 914

Environmental rehabllltatlon
provision

The provision is'made in terms of the licensing. stipulations. The Provision has been determined on the basis of the recent
independent study by taking into account a number of factors to the deslgn, manner of operations and rehabilitation measures
proposed which was assessed, investigated and tested. There is no anticipated environmental harm, groundwater paliution,
leachate leakage that could be found. The municipality did not alter any structure and infrustructure to the éxisting landfill.

In the pravious AFS a landfill closure provision was disclosed for this landfill but a methodology differant from the mathodology
used in the GLCCM was used. This resulted in a significant increase in the provision.

The CPl is used for determining the future value of current costs in the year when the cost is projected to be incurred.
The CPI figure used in the GLCCM is based on the three-month averagef‘ CP{ for the quarter that includes the

7 financial year-end date. %;

The average of the CP| for the last three months amounted to 4.8235%.

The amount of the discounted landfill closure provisian of R52 638 744 represents an increase of R1 934 830 over the

- pravision of RS0 703 914 in the previous financial statements.

Rehabilitation and closure report was compiled by Environmental and Sustainability Solutions GC appomted by the
Council.

Changes in the present value of provision for landfill rehabilitation are as foilows
Opening Balance '

Change in landfi#f closure

Interest Charge

50703914 48 840 203
(1822 685) (2016 007)
3757515 3873719

52638744 - 50703 914

Restatement

Balance as previously reported - - 5062888
Prior Period adjustments - 45641 026
- 50763914

Restated Balance
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.12, Employee benefit obligations
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Carrying value
Long term partion to current liabilites (1885000) {1605000)
Current portion to current liabilities {180 000) _ (137 GOO)
(2075000) {1742 000)
Non-current liabilitiss (18950000 {1605 000)
Current liabilities {180 000) {137 000)
(2075000} (1742 000)
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance
Current service cost 226 000 236 000
Interest cost 157 000 144 000 .
. Actuarial (gains) losses 130 000 (137 G00)
' 513 000 243000
Key assumptions used
Assumplions used at the reporiing date:
Discount rates used 9,44 % - %
General earnings inflation rate (long-term) 5,84 % - %
Net Effective discount rate 340% - %
13.  Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables 20781702 152682173
Third Party Payments 21209 432 17 867 213
© Accrued leave pay 3293082 3135743
Accrued bonus _ : . 1026 014 953 174
. Unknown Peposits “/ 902267 734 047
Retentions ’ ' _ _ Ky 2953 387 1700123
’ ? ' 50 165 834 32453 373
14, Consumer deposits
Water 116 716 97 594
15. Revenue
Sale of goods 423 100 354 170
Service charges © 8902 370 9 429 960
Rental of facilities and equipment 295 384 178 105
Interest received Consumer Accounis 4108 425 3667 855
Licences and permits 775 298 390 729
-Qther income 162 973 153 514
Interest received - investment 168 064 158 164
Property rales 3391831 3958 455
Government grants & subsidies 52 708 401 37 672 440
71935 846 55 863 392
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15. Revenue {continued)
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows: o : .
Sale of goods 423 100 354 170
Service charges 9902370 9429 960
Rental of facilities and equipment 205 384 178 105
tnterest received Consumer Accounts 4108 425 3 667 855
Licences and permits 775298 - 390 729
Other Income 162 873 1563 514
Interest recelved - investment 168 064 158 164
' ' 15835 614 14 332 497
The amount included in reven.ue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:
Taxation revenue
Property rates 3391 831 3958 455
Transfer revenue o .
Gavernment grants & subsidies 52 708 401 37 672 440
56 100 232 41 630 895
16. Service charges
Service ch'arges 9802 370 9429 960
17. Rental of facilities and equipment
Premises
Premises 295 384 . 178 105
295 3184 178 105
18. Licences and permits {exchange)
License and Permits ) 1 775298 390729
. . . . _g?/ )
19. Other Income o ' ' f
Other incame 162 973 153 514
20, Investment revenue
Interest revenue
- Bank 168 064 158 164
21. Property rates
Rates received
Commercial 1364 987 1167 758
Residential 827 846 782 302
State 420 831 180 912
Small holdings and farms 778 167 1827 483
2026 844 2790697
3391 831 3958455
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22, Government grants and subsidies
Operating grants - . .
Equitable share ' 34 043 000 . 25338 412
Finance Management Grant - o 2 995 579 2 880 000
Library Grant R 869 097
EEDSM Grant _ 2 700 000 -
: 40 534 356 29 087 509
Capital grants : S
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) . o ) 10 893 332 5310610
Water Service Infrastructure Grant R 216 298 2521431
Extended Public Works Programme (EPWP) } ) - 1084 415 752 890
o 12 174 045 8 584 931
52 708 401 37 672 440
Conditional and Unconditional
Included in ahove are the following grants and subsidies received:
Conditional grants received : : : T 229846 115 12 334 028
Unconditional grants received : 30043 000 25338412
52 989 115 37 672 440 -

Equitable Share

In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members.

Alt registered ihdigents receive a monthly subsidy of R - (2020: R -), which is funded fn_'om' the grént.

Water Services Infrastructure Grant

3925 886

~ Balance 'uhspent at beginning of year i ' 1471.459
Current-year receipts 1108 449 -
Conditions met - fransferred to revenue o gfi»,/ ' {2.579908) - (2454 427)

' ? _ S - 1471458
Canditions stifl to be met - remain Habilities (see note 10). '
Provide explanations of conditions stiil_to he met and other relevant information.
Library Grant
Balance unspént at beginning of year - : .54 643 “173 743
Current-year receipts 80C 000 750 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {733 000) (869 100)
' ‘ ' 121 643 " 54643

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities {sae nota 10).

- Pravide expianations of conditions still to be met and other relevant information.
EPWP
Balance unspent at beginning of year ’ . 360 070 112 960
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22, Government grants and sub5|dres (contmued}

Current-year receipts 1000060 . 1000000

Refunded Back to Treasury ‘ {182 695) -

~ Conditions met - transfarred to revenue . ) (1-000 000) (752 890)
Ovsrspending in terms of allocated Grant {64 305) -
113 070 360 070

Conditions stilf to be met - remain liabifities (see note 10).

Municipal Infrast'ru.cture Grant

- 8304203 2923813
16 835000 . 10691000

Refunded Back to Treasury (11 322 058) : -
Conditions met - fransferred to revenue ‘ (8994942 (5310 610)

4822 203 8 304 203

Balance unspent at beginning of year

- Conditions still to be met - remain fiabilities (sze note 10).

23. Finance costs’

4023719

Landfill' Site Rehabillitation - _ - 3914 515

e
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24. Employee refated costs
Basic 21600338 20 754 477
Bonus 1710 218 908 594
Medical aid - company contributions 818 962 624 244
UIF - 204 747 219 579
sDL 207 532 239 959
Leave pay provision charge 263 908 643 177
Travel, motor ¢ar, accommadation, subsistence and other allowances 3178078 2 882 061
Overtime payments 8798 8750
Pension Fund Confributions 2901 917 2973673
Housing benefits and allowances 256 706 200 496
Training Levies ' 1283 10 111
Bargaining Allowance 8069 : -
Standby AHowance 105 906 . -
31 266 458 29 445 121
Reniuneration of municipal manager - JTF Leeuw
Annual Remuneration 951 779 854 328
Car Allowance 190 356 - 220 812
Cellphane Allowance 24 000 21 000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Penszon Funds 1367 1785
Housing Allowance - - 54 000 -
1167502 1151925
Remuneration of chief finance officer - JD B_Ioc'k
Annual Remuneration - 757 850 610 229
Car Allowance 244 098 215 084
Arrear Salary Payment - 86 206
Contributions to WF, Medical and Pansion Funds 63 121 76 564
_Bonus ) 111 628 51 206
Celiphone Allowance 12 000 12 000
Skills Development Lavy - 851 -
1197200 - 1051269,
Remuner’étion of Acting Corpaorate M'anager -8 .}_gﬁsen ?
Annual Remuneration . - 135 218
Car Allowance - 50 415
Bonus - 28 808
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 13 708
Arrear Salary Payment - . 20 531
Cellphone Allowance - 2671
- 251 351
Remuneration of Technical Director - D Dolopi
Annual Remuneration 897 427 612 288
Car Allewance 244 098 - 215084
Bonus 51 206 51206
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 29 549 57 087
Celiphone Allowance 42 000 12 600
1034 280 947 645
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24, Employee related costs (continued)

Remuneration of Community Service Director - F Van Eck

Annual Remuneration ' ' 757 274 865 679
Car Allowance o 262 352 215 064
Cellphane AHowance : : 12 200 12 000
Cantributions to F, Medical and Pension Funds - } - 31 853 61 696
' 1 063 679 - 954 439
25. Raemuneration of counciilors
Executive Mayai - o . ' 229220 -
Councillors . 2758 828 2 187 966

2938048 2 787 966

26. Depreciation

Praperty, plant and equipment S 9656140 45633255

" 27. Debt impairment

Debt impairment - 4904 242
28. Bulk purchases
‘Water . . 2 660 341 1164 242

w.,.._
~

e A
. N \f
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29, General expenses
Accounting fees 1101 198 16 371
-Adveriising 71737 26 273
Bank charges 76 808 127 238
Cleaning. 233107 347 666
Transfers and Grants (800) 638 413
Computer expenses 849 516 4 353
Consulting and professionat fees 3578673 622 805
Entertainment 1995 . 792
Insurance’ : - 47 318
Community development and tramlng 1786 -
Fuel and oil 407 915 415 682
- Postage and courier 1970 24-919
Printing and stationery 124 226 133 107
"Protective clothing 24584 43 873
Repairs and maintenance (163 872) 266 543
Royalties and license fees 1.108 496 99 793
Security (Guarding of municipal property) 9574 16 745
Subscriptions and membership fees 1938 315 506 381
Telephone and fax © 470 110 144 392
Travel - local - 27 587 166 918
Electricity 2 503 538 1819923
Unifarms 16 358 -
Other Expenses 245173 . 246 712
Expense 6 - 3020
Daily Allowances 19 700 63 175
tndingent Relief 402 953 - : -
Venue expenses 48 000 79 000
Subsistence Allowances 23 890 118 131
Other expenses . 222170 -
13 142 687 5979 543
30. Cash generated from operations
Surplus (deficit} ] 3309580 {38053 317)
Adjustments for: * i _
Depreciation : ki 9656140 45 //3 255
Impairment deficit ' § 5951 315 4 057
Debt lmpalrment - 04 212
Maovements in retiremant benefit assets and liabilities 322128 '1 742 000
Movements in provisions (1934 831) (45 800 265}
Interest inccme - 39611 097
Other nan-cash items 42 620 661 11 537 433
Changes in working capital:
Inventories - (19 199)
Reaceivables from exchange transaciions 857 210 (3 609 534}
Consumer debtors (12 799 969) (10 881 002)
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (40 980 564) (31 b58)
Payables from exchange transactions .10 493 204 5264 852
VAT (1081028) (2242815)
Unspent conditionat grants and receipts {1.922 401) -
Consurner debtors (19 122) 104 979
14 492-323 8244197
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31. Related parties

Relationships :
. Members of Key Management . Mr JTF Leeuw {(Municipal Manager)

: JD Block (Chief Financiat Officer}
D Dolopi {Technical Directar)
GS van Eck (Community Service Directar)
Councillors - Refer to list of Councillors Below

Related party balances

Clir A Diergaardt {438) 232
Clir M Esau _ ' : ' _ : - - 28180 . 26150
ClIr E Cloete ' : - 30851 26750
Clir K Esau ' : _ _ S 7438 5331

32, Risk management

Financial risk management

The mummpallty s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (mcludlng currency nsk fair value interest rate
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, .

The municipality's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredlctablhty of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the municipality's financial performance

Liquidity risk-

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by-an entity in the event of diffi culty in meeling obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by dellvermg cash or ancther financial asset. .

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of commitied credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying busmesses municipality treasury maintains flexibility in fundmg by maintaining availability under
committed credit linas.

The 'munlcnpahty s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future cormmitments and credlt facilities. No changes were made to the fU"E‘j,L"Q

method and method used to assess the ris "

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adetuate utilised horrowing facilities are monitored. : 5
At 30 June 2021 : . Less than 1 Between 1 and Between 2 and Over 5 years
o ) . year 2 yaars 5 years
Consumer Deposits ' 94795 - - -
Trade and Other Payables : © 16 268 846 - - -
Employee Benefit Obllgat;on ‘ . 14 008 .- - -
Unspent Grants ’ . 10123019 . - : - -
At 30 June 2020 Less than 1 Belween 1 and Between 2 and Over 5 years
“year 2 years b years’ .

Consumer Deposits 94.795 - - -
Trade and Other Payables : - 9900 445 - : - -
Employee Benefit Obligation ) 12 440 - - -
Unspent Grants ‘ 10123 019 - = -
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32. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposﬁs cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors The
municipafity enly deposits cash with major banks with high quality credlt standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread custemer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoaing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk
. conirol assessss the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in.accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or usmg major credit cards. Credrt guarantee
insurance is purchased when deemed approprlate i

Financlai assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument : _ 2021 2020
Other Receivables from non- exchange Transactions . : 2610089 2883 117
Cash and Cash Equivalents -~ 12516 089 1 802 251
Consumer Debtors . : o . 42658027 = 29529 566
Market risk

Interest rate risk

Market risk is the risk that the.fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in -
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: cutrency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

- Interaest risk arises from receivables and financial assels

Interast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or futurs cash flows of a financial instrument wilt fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Currently the municipality does not have any fong term borrowing.

The interest risk is managed through the implementation of the credit control policy by the revenue unit and applying a fixed
interest rate. There was not changes on the pchcy and the method used

33. Unauthorised expenditure - éf - o SR . !f

Opening balance as previously reported' ' 46 419 972 F 46 012 489
Opening halance as restated : 46 419 972 46 012 489
Add: Expenditure identified - current i : . - 407 483
Closing balance ' _ 46 419972 46 419972

34. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as pfeviously-reported : - ) 5450 332 3 968 061
Opening balance as restated ) ) 5 450 332 3 968 061
Add: Expenditure identified - current 2725930 1277174
Add: Expenditure identified - prior period : _ - 205 087

Closing balance 8176 262 5 450 332
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35. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance as pre\)ious_ly reported ) 33612509 31089 125
GCortrection of prior period error ) : - 1717 261
Opening balance as restated . 33 612 509 32 806 386
Add: Irregufar Expenditure - current ' o 146 594 - 9740 961
Prior peried error - (8 934 838)
Add: Irregular expenditure |dent|f' ed in Prior Year 206 324 -
Closing balance ) ' ' 33965427 . 33612509

36. Deviation from supply chain management regulations

Paragraph 12(1){d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a suppiy chain management policy
must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process.

Paragraph 36.of the same gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in
~ certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the
accounting officer and includes a note to the annual financial statements. The total deviations for the year under review
amounted to R684 936.591 (2020: R808 841.56)

. 2021 ‘ : Total " Singte impossible Impractical Emergency
: Supplier
_ 879 962 28087 39 909 3125 808 842
Subtotat ' 879 962 28 087 39 909 3125 808 842
8§79 962 28 087 39 909 " 3125 808 842
2020 : Total Single Impossible Impractical Emergency
" Supplier : .
. ) 1085872 116 961 © 60184 292 228 684 937
Subtotal . _ 1085 572 116 961 60 184 = 292228 684 937

1085572 116 961 60184 . 252228 684 937

37. Prior period error

Tha following prior period errors we e 1dentzfed and the corractions have now been made to amounts previouf’g reported in the
annual financial statements of the f§1un|0|pahty . ?

" Property, Plant and Eqmpment'

Property, Plant and equipment related to roads was misstated in prior year due to assets that were not recorded m the Fixed
asset register. The arror was carrected In current year. Kindly refer to Nate 3.

There was also subsequent depreciation adjustment due to the misstated infrastructure.

Inventory:
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37. Prior period error (continued)

inventory was overstated due to incorract recordings on water inventory and items of material and supplies that were not

impaired as they had bacome ohsolete

Receivables from Exchange differences

Receivables from exchange transactions were misstated due to incorrect classification.

Employee Benefit Obligation; '

In the prior year there was no acturial valuatlon on Long Service Awards This resulted in the understatement of the Emplayee

Benefit Obligation.

Depreciation;

Depreciation was understated due to items of Infrastructure that were not recorded in the Fixed Assst register,

Annual Bonus and Leave Pay

There was incorrect calculation. of items of Prowsmn for bonus in the prior year which resulted in Anhual Bonuses being

misstated and Provision for Leave,

Provision for Landfili Site

It has been identified that the landfillsite rehab:llltation was not assesed correctly in the prior year. This therefore results inthe
m;sstatement of Provisions and Overstatement of Expenditure due to the provision that was raised.

The correction of the arrors results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position

Property, plant and eguipment

Inventory

Vat receivable/Payable ]
Recsivables from exchange transactions
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Payables from exchange transa‘:tlons

- Employee Benefit Obligation 27 -
Receivables from non-exchang§ transactions
Provision for Landfill site Rehabillitation

Statement of financial performance

Employee Costs

Bulk Purchases
Depraciation -

Qther Income

General expenses
Impairment
Remuneration.of Counolﬂors
Finance Costs

38. Going concern

As previously ~ Correction of Re - 2020
reported errar Classification Restated
158 484 741 46 725 680 - - 205220421
178 429 {159 230) - 19199
1876424 366 491 - 2242 915
20 529 564 (79 992) - 28 449 572
1678 661 1006 102 - 2 685763
30 166 641 9274 292 L - 39440933
401 478 - 1340 522 b 1742000
2663 116 {420 201) - 2242915
5062 889 45 641 025 - 50 703 914
230 052 943 103 694 689 - - 333747 632
As previously Correction of  Reclassifi- 2019
reported ~ error cation ‘Restated
{29 726 307) 281186 - {29445121)
{97 516) (1 066 726) - {1164 242}
{7 940 457) {37 692 798) - (45833 255)
123 291 - - 123 291
(4 871 601) (1 007 942) - - {5 979 543)
- {84 057) - (84 057)
(2 742 866) {45 100) - (2 787 966)
- {4023 719} - (4023719)
{45 355 456) (43 639 156) - {88994 812)

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2021, the munsclpalsty had an accumulated surplus (deficit) of R 141 946 805 and
that the municipality's total liabilities exceed its assets by R 141 946 605.
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38, Going concern (continued}

" The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and setlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipality to continue as a golng concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of

these Is that the accounting officer continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the municipality and that the
subordination agreement referred to in note XX of these annual financial statements will remam in force for sa long as it takes

to restare the solvency of the municipality.

39. Events after the reportmg date

Nao events are known at time of submission of annual financial statements that may have a material impact on-'Kheis
Municipality's Going Concern. :

40. [Impairment of assets

Imbairments - ) ) : )
Property, plant and equipment . T . : 5951315 84 057

41. Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

C . Praperty, plant and equipment . . _ 19617 365 6137 925

Total capital commitments _ SR
Already contracted for but not provided for o © 19617 365 6137825

This committed expenditure relates to capital projects and will be financed by available bank facilities,retained surpluses
existing cash resources, funds internally generated. .

42. Additional dlsclosure‘m terms of Municipal Finance Management Act A/

Contributions to orgamse? local government (SALGA) :

Opening balance } : ' 2526 702 2018 997
Current year fes B 500 ¢00 500 000
Interest Charged : 8 250 7705
Amount paid - Current Year . i - {150 000) -

2884 952 2526702

Audit fees
Opening balance 3402 889 1856 107
External audit fees National Treasury _ 2092353 ° 1268835

Interest Charged 267 314 277 146

Double Captured Invoices 1030225 -
) - 6792 781 3402 838
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42. Additional disclosure in.terms of Munieipal Finance Management Act (éantinued)
- PAYE and UIF
Opening batance . - - (33052) 1321068
Current year subscription / fee ' : _ _ _ 8874 707 4 408 848
Amount paid - current year 7 1510 676 (b 762 967)
' 10 352 331 {33 051)
Pension Deductions
Opening balance o ) ' 8714 839 179 685
Current year fee : ’ ' ‘4717 968 7981 807
Amount paid - current year : : - (1096 557) - (1456 653)
10 336 250 6714 839
‘Medical Aid Deduction
Opening baiance : ) 100 837 - 44 424
- Gurrent yearfee - : ' 1354 344 1060 350
Amount paid - current year (1452583) (1 003936)
B ' ' 2598 100 838
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